
Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street  P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, CA 92230 

BOARD MEETING PACKET 

November 15, 2022 

FAC Meeting at 5:00 pm 

Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm 

Page 1 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 FAC Meeting Agenda 

1 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 
Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, November 15, 2022 – 5:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER,  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  
ROLL CALL 
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 

1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report 

 Balance Sheet

 Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
2. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and 
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or 
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on specific agenda items, please 
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be 
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d)) 

ADJOURNMENT 
ADA Compliance Issues 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to 
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to 
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting. 

Page 2 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

1 

Page 1 of 3 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 

Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Email: info@cabazonwater.org 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, November 15, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN 
ROLL CALL 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and 
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and 
will be considered separately. 

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of October 18, 2022
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of October 18, 2022
c. Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19

2. Warrants – None
3. Awards of Contracts – None

UPDATES 

1. Update: CWD Operations Report 
(by GM Pollack) 

Page 3 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

2 

Page 2 of 3 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion/Action: Award of Contract for Isolation Valve Improvement Project; Borden 
Excavating INC   

2. Discussion/Action: Bonita Ave PRV Station Replacement Project 

3. Discussion/Action: Proposal by Krieger & Stewart regarding the ARPA-funded Broadway/Main 
Cluster Valve Project 

OLD BUSINESS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to 
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited 
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on 
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the 
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 
53232.3(d)) 

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS 

1. Future Agenda Items

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

 Suggested agenda items from the Public.

 Suggested agenda items from Management.

 Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments

Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Finance & Audit Workshop – Tuesday, Dec. 20, 2022, 5:00 pm

Page 4 of 63

[TAB 1]

[TAB 2]

[TAB 3]



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

3 

Page 3 of 3 

b. Regular Board Meeting – Tuesday, Dec. 20, 2022, 6:00 pm
c. Collaborative Agencies Meeting at Beaumont Unified School District – Jan. 4, 2023 – 5:00 pm
d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Meeting – Monday, Jan. 23, 2023, 5:00 pm
e. Community Water Systems Alliance Meeting – TBD – 2023
f. Community Action Committee Meeting – TBD – 2023
g. Personnel Committee – TBD

ADJOURNMENT 
ADA Compliance Issues 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a 
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff 
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access. 

Page 5 of 63



 Cabazon Water District

 Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2022

Oct 31, 22

1 ASSETS

2 Current Assets

3 Checking/Savings 634,528$       634,528          Chase

4 Accounts Receivable 274,421        818,492          LAIF

5 LAIF 818,492         1,453,020$      Cash & LAIF

6 Bank of NY Trustee Accounts 56,919          

7 Prepaid Expenses 25,454          

8 Inventory 109,315         

9 Total Current Assets 1,919,128     

10 Fixed Assets

11 Total Fixed Assets 14,112,350   

12 Accumulated Depreciation (6,663,221)   

13 Net Fixed Assets 7,449,129     

14 TOTAL ASSETS 9,368,257$    

15 LIABILITIES & EQUITY

16 Liabilities

17 Current Liabilities

18 Accounts Payable 38,999$         

19 Other Current Liabilities

20 Dues to Other Gov't SGPWA 75,583          

21 Customer Deposits 8,786 

22 Current Portion DWR-H Loan 43,208          

23 Current Portion Zion's Bank Loan 87,077          

24 Current Portion 2022 Ford 12,590          

25 Accrued Expenses 24,081          

26 Total Current Liabilities 290,324        

27 Long Term Liabilities

28 DWR-H Loan Payable (2026) 153,019        

29 Ford Long Term 60,728          

30 RCEDA Loan Payable 300,000        

31 Total Long Term Liabilities 513,748        

32 Total Liabilities 804,072        

33 Total Equity 8,564,185      

34 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,368,257$    

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially

all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 6 of 63



 Cabazon Water District

 Profit & Loss
 For the Period Ending October 31, 2022

A B C D=B/C

Oct-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Amended 

Budget YTD (33%)

1 REVENUES

2 OPERATING INCOME

3 Base Rate - Water Bills 44,240$   177,521$   563,300$   32%

4 Commodity Sales 71,175  332,977  757,300  44%

5 DHPO Contract 26,025  98,845  182,500  54%

6 DHPO Capacity Credit (1,750)  (7,000)  (10,500)  67%

7 Fire Sales - Water Bills 342  2,023  5,600  36%

8 Fees & Charges 5,708  25,088  51,000  49%

9 Basic Facilities Fee - 33,027 75,200  44%

10 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue 6,164  10,234 105,900  10%

11 TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 151,903  672,714  1,730,300  39%

12 NON-OPERATING INCOME

13 Property Taxes 196  560  86,700  1%

14 Cell Tower Lease Income - 10,900 26,600  41%

15 Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 79  4,213  - 0%

16 Interest Income 3,562  6,193  7,600  81%

17 TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME 3,836  21,865  120,900  18%

18 TOTAL REVENUES 155,739  694,579  1,851,200  38%

19 EXPENSES

20 PAYROLL

21 Directors Fees 1,177  6,300  25,000  25%

22 Management & Customer Service - As Amended 20,011  62,556  245,600  25%

23 Field Workers - As Amended 16,684  63,481  202,200  31%

24 Employee Benefits Expense - As Amended 13,484  47,376  154,700  31%

25 Payroll Taxes - As Amended 3,031  11,177  37,300  30%

26 TOTAL PAYROLL 54,387  190,890  664,800  29%

27 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

28 Facilities, Wells, T&D

29 Lab Fees 286  1,873  13,100  14%

30 Meter Testing & Repair 375  475  5,100  9%

31 Utilities - Wells 13,611  50,775  150,400  34%

32 Line R&M Materials - As Amended 9,924  45,253  75,600  60%

33 Well Maintenance 1,068  17,796  40,400  44%

34 Security 1,754  7,626  29,500  26%

35 Engineering Services - As Amended 3,778  14,491  40,000  36%

36 Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other 1,338  7,116  16,600  43%

37 Total Facilities, Wells, T&D 32,133  145,406  370,700  39%

38 Office Expenses

39 Utilities - Office 2,669  12,728  36,800  35%

40 Water Billing System 216  862  2,400  36%

41 Supplies & Equipment 1,061  2,558  13,200  19%

42 Copier & Supplies 373  1,683  5,500  31%

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures

required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 7 of 63



 Cabazon Water District

 Profit & Loss
 For the Period Ending October 31, 2022

Oct-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Amended 

Budget YTD (33%)

43 Dues & Subscriptions 42$   167$   2,500$   7%

44 Postage 1,347  3,373  10,600  32%

45 Printing & Publications -  292  600  49%

46 Computer Services 2,910  12,362  38,400  32%

47 Air Conditioning Servicing 453  1,812  5,500  33%

48 Community Water Systems Alliance (CWSA) -  250  3,000  8%

49 Office Expenses - Other -  507  2,100  24%

50 Total Office Expenses 6,402  23,867  120,600  20%

51 Support Services

52 Financial Audit 2,802  8,484  24,700  34%

53 Accounting 7,371  14,371  42,000  34%

54 Legal Services 356  8,585  63,500  14%

55 Payroll/Bank Service Charge 423  1,804  5,500  33%

56 Website Support - As Amended 204  557  900  62%

57 Insurance 3,141  12,562  37,500  33%

58 Total Support Services 14,296  46,364  174,100  27%

59 Training/Travel 1,865  2,940  10,500  28%

60 Other Fees/SWRCB -  1,583  9,700  16%

61 Service Tools & Equipment

62 Shop Supplies and Small Tools 511  1,687  6,300  27%

63 Vehicle Fuel - As Amended 649  1,874  13,050  14%

64 Employee Uniforms 650  650  1,100  59%

65 Safety 581  581  1,800  32%

66 Tractor Expenses/ Maintenance -  -  3,900  0%

67 Equipment Rental 255  4,720  9,000  52%

68 Service Trucks - R&M 791  3,871  13,800  28%

69 Water Operations On-Call Phones 597  1,729  3,800  45%

70 Total Service Tools & Equipment 4,034  15,112  52,750  29%

71 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

72 Loan Interest & Processing Fee 3,237  5,334  12,600  42%

73 Bad Debt Expense -  -  1,300  0%

74 Miscellaneous -  -  1,500  0%

75 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 3,237  5,334  15,400  35%

76 TOTAL EXPENSES 119,023  444,225  1,418,550  31%

77 INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL & GSA 36,716  250,354  432,650  58%

78 Capital Projects 31,165  7,273  (285,000)  -3%

79 Debt Service - Principal (22,588)  (69,546)  (144,000)  48%

80 SGMA / GSA -  -  (35,000)  0%

81 NET INCOME / (LOSS) 45,294$   188,081$   (31,350)$   

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all disclosures

required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 8 of 63



 Cabazon Water District

Capital Detail
 For the Period Ending October 31, 2022

A B C D=B/C

Oct-22 Current YTD

FY 22/23 

Budget YTD (33%)

CAPITAL PROJECTS

1 RESERVE FUNDED

2 Well & Tank Repairs -$  -$  (225,000)$     0%

3 Customer Shut-Off Valves (154) (154) (40,000)         0%

4 Meter Replacement (4,817) (7,339) (20,000)         37%

5 TOTAL RESERVE FUNDED PROJECTS (4,971) (7,493) (285,000)       3%

6 GRANT FUNDED

7 DWR

8 Isolation Valves (5,715) (22,099)           (1,243,000)    2%

9 Grant Funding - DWR - - 1,243,000      0%

10 SWRCB

11 Groundwater Well Improvements (615) (5,601) (499,000)       1%

12 Grant Funding - SWRCB 42,466 42,466 499,000         9%

13 ARPA

14 Broadway & Main St. Gate Valve - - (100,000)       0%

15 T2, T3, & T4 Recoating - - (500,000)       0%

16 Grant Funding - ARPA - - 600,000         0%

17 NET GRANT FUNDED PROJECTS 36,136 14,767 - 0%

18 TOTAL NET COST OF CAPITAL PROJECTS 31,165$  7,273$  (285,000)$     

Total Project Activity Summary

Groundwater Well Improvement Project Expenses

 Funding 

Received 

Total 

Receivable

Total Budget 499,000$           499,000$        

Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 22 (42,466) 42,466 -

Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 23 (5,601) - 5,601 

Total (48,067)$  42,466$          5,601$           

Isolation Valves Project Expenses

 Funding 

Received 

 Total 

Receivable 

Total Budget 1,243,000$        1,243,000$     

Isolation Valves - FY 22 (33,118) - 33,118 

Isolation Valves - FY 23 (22,099) - 22,099 

Total (55,216)$  -$  55,216$         

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially

all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 9 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

1 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES 

Meeting Location: 
Cabazon Water District Office 

14618 Broadway Street 
Cabazon, California 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, October 18, 2022 – 5:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL 

Director Terry Tincher - Present 
Director Sarah Wargo - Present 
Michael Pollack, General Manager - Present 
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Present 
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary - Present 

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 

1. Discussion:   FY 22/23 Amended Budget 

 Mrs. Byerrum explained the reasons for the changes to the budget. Some numbers were based off of known
amounts, while others were based off assumptions. The following changes were made:

Increases:  
o Basic Facilities Fee (revenue)
o Management & Customer Service
o Field Workers
o Payroll Taxes
o Line R&M Materials

Page 10 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

2 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

o Website Support
Decreases:
o Employee Benefits Expense
o Engineering Services
o Vehicle Fuel

 The ending expected loss decreased from ~$90k to ~$31k.

2. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report 

 Balance Sheet

 Profit and Loss Budget Comparison

Main Reports: 
• Balance Sheet – depicts what the District owns and what the District owes.
• Profit & Loss Budget Performance – shows how the District is performing against the budget, and the condition of

the District fiscal year to date. 
• Capital Detail – shows activity pertaining to Capital Projects.

Balance Sheet: 

The District’s combined Cash with Chase and LAIF balance was $1,374,841 at month end. The District’s total 

liabilities were approximately $806,279 at month end. 

Profit and Loss: - Year to date is 25% of the year 

9. Basic Facilities Fee: These are fees charged for new service connections, meter installations & upgrades. These
revenues are budgeted conservatively due to their unpredictable nature. YTD is over budget due to fees 
collected for 3/4” service on Bonita and 5/8” on Maxine and Bonita. 

30. Meters: This account includes the costs of meter repairs & meter testing and expenses will vary throughout the
year. 

32. Line R&M Materials: This account includes the expenses relating to materials for line repair & maintenance.
YTD is at 99% of budget due to bulk purchases to stock up due to shipping delays. 

35. Engineering Services: This account includes general engineering services required by the District. YTD is at
13% of budget due to the timing of services. 

41. Supplies & Equipment: This account includes the supply & equipment purchases for the District office. YTD
expenses will vary depending on timing of purchases. 

45. Printing & Publications: This account includes the printing & publication costs for any District notices or reports.
YTD is at 49% of budget due to the timing of stand-by charges meeting notices for FY 22-23. 

54. Legal Services: This account includes the costs of legal services for the District. YTD will vary depending upon
the timing of legal services needed. 

56. Website Support: This account includes monthly web hosting costs. The District is paying $75/month for website
hosting services not anticipated in budget that will cause account to be over budget by year-end. YTD is 
over budget at 71% due to the addition of Navigator Search Service. 

63. Vehicle Fuel: This account includes fuel costs for District vehicles. YTD will vary depending on timing of bills
received. 

64. Employee Uniforms: This account includes employee uniform purchases and reimbursements. YTD will vary
depending on timing of bills received. 

65. Safety: This account includes safety equipment purchases. YTD will vary depending on timing of bills received.
66. Tractor Expenses/Maintenance: This account includes tractor repair & maintenance expense.
67. Equipment Rental: This account includes equipment rental expenses incurred by the district. YTD is at 50% due

to $2.1K paid for traffic control on Bonita and the timing of rentals. Since the District is now fully staffed, 
hired traffic control will not be needed as often.  

Page 11 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 FAC Meeting Minutes 

3 

Business (951) 849-4442 • FAX (951) 849-2519 

78. Capital Projects: This account includes reserve funded capital projects. See Capital Detail schedule for more
information. 

As of September 30th, the fiscal year-to-date net income is $141,132. 

Capital Detail 

3. Well & Tank Repair: This account includes activity for the Bonita Vault Rehabilitation project, which is currently
being researched. 

4. Customer Shut-Off Valves: This account is for installation of customer shut-off valves. Total project cost is
estimated at $120K spread over the next three years. 

5. Meter Replacement: This account is for the Water Meter Replacement Program.

9. Isolation Valves: Includes the Isolation Valves project which is expected to be 100% grant funded. Cash flow

relating to grant receipts to be supported by SGPWA Gap Funding. 

12. Groundwater Well Improvements: Includes the Groundwater Well Improvements project, expected to be 100%

grant funded. Cash flow relating to grant receipts to be supported by SGPWA Gap Funding. 

15. Broadway & Main St. Gate Valve: Includes the Broadway & Main Gate Valve, anticipated to be 100% grant

funded. 

16. T2, T3, & T4 Recoating: Includes Tank Recoating for T1, T2 & T4, anticipated to be 100% grant funded.

 GM Pollack stated that staff will begin tracking outstanding balances on water accounts to find out how much

potential revenue is not being received due to customers not paying their water bills.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and 
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or 
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on specific agenda items, please 
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be 
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d)) 

3. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing (done after adjournment)

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 5:27 PM on Tuesday, October 18, 2022 

____________________________________ 
Sarah Wargo, Board Chair Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary 
Board of Directors Board of Directors 
Cabazon Water District  Cabazon Water District 

ADA Compliance Issues 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to 
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to 
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting. 

Page 12 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

1 

Page 1 of 5 

Cabazon Water District 
14618 Broadway Street • P.O. Box 297 

Cabazon, California 92230 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 

Meeting Location: 
14618 Broadway St. 
Cabazon, CA 92230 

Teleconference: 
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321 
Access Code: 117188 

Email: info@cabazonwater.org 

Meeting Date: 
Tuesday, October 18, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN 
ROLL CALL 

Director Taffy Brock - Present 
Director Terry Tincher - Present 
Director Diana Morris - Present 
Director Alan Davis - Present 
Director Sarah Wargo - Present 

Michael Pollack, General Manager - Present 
Jonathan Abadesco, Auditor - Present 
Cindy Byerrum, Financial Consultant - Present 
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary - Present 

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and 
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and 
will be considered separately. 

Page 13 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2 

Page 2 of 5 

1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of September 20, 2022
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of September 20, 2022
c. Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19

2. Warrants – None
3. Awards of Contracts – None

Motion to approve following consent calendar item(s) 
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of September 20, 2022
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of September 20, 2022
c. Reaffirmation of Resolution 04-2021, declaring the continuation of virtual meetings due to COVID-19

made by Director Davis and 2nd by Director Tincher 

Director Brock – Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 

UPDATES 

1. Update: Community Action Committee Update  
(by Director Morris and Director Davis) 

 The Community Center had an event on the date of the scheduled CAC meeting, and no other meeting
location could be found.

 The next meeting is planned to take place sometime after the New Year, and the frequency may change
from monthly to every 2 or 3 months.

2. Update: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Update 
(by Director Morris and Director Brock) 

 Nothing to report.

3. Update: CWD Operations Report 
(by GM Pollack) 

 GM Pollack shared updates since the last meeting:
o Met with the Cindy Byerrum regarding the budget.
o Met with Best Best & Kreiger, the District’s legal consultants. They discussed DHPO’s contract and

how the end of the contract will impact the District.
o DHPO’s meter was tested. No recalibration was needed.
o Discussions of replacing the Bonita PRV station took place with staff and Engineering.
o The bids for the Isolation Valve project were received. Borden Construction was the lowest bidder.
o The meter replacement program is ongoing.
o Maintenance of hydrants and air vacs, along with the repainting of assets is taking place.
o 2 main leaks and 1 service leak were repaired.
o A new mobile meter reading program is being used. IT is looking into having meter reads time-

stamped.

Page 14 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

3 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

o Met with Victor Diaz regarding the proposed development on and along east Bonita. A rough 
estimate of the cost is over $500k.  

o Weed abatement was completed at the center divider on Main St.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion/Action: Report of the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2021/2022 as presented  
   by Fedak & Brown LLP 

 
 Mr. Abadesco presented the financial statements to the Board. The Board had no questions.  

 
*No action was taken. The Board thanked Mr. Abadesco for his presentation.  
 

2. Discussion/Action: Amend FY 2022/2023 Budget 
 

 Mrs. Byerrum explained the changes that were discussed during the FAC meeting.  
 
Motion to approve the 2022/2023 Amended Budget made by Director Tincher and 2nd by Director Morris 

 
Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 
 

3. Discussion/Action: Customer Concern: Peach St. – Victoria Burke 
 

 Ms. Burke stated that her bill dropped down to $40 this most recent month. Ms. Burke said that she has 
Ring camera footage of the meter reader passing her house without reading her meter and that in a more 
recent video, the worker was rude and unprofessional. GM Pollack said that if she has an issue with her bill 
in the future, she can contact him so he can do an investigation. He also said that payment arrangements 
could be set up for her current outstanding balance. Directors Wargo and Morris asked to view the video 
footage that was mentioned, but there was an issue with the audio. Ms. Burke said she would email the 
videos to GM Pollack.  

 
*No action was taken.   

 
4. Discussion/Action: Trunk or Treat – Request to use the Cabazon Water District parking lot – 

   Victoria Burke  
 
Motion to accept the request made by Victoria Burke to use the Cabazon Water District parking lot for Trunk 
or Treat on Thursday, October 27 at 6:00 PM made by Director Davis and 2nd by Director Tincher 

 
Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 
 
 

Page 15 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

4 

Page 4 of 5 

5. Discussion/Action: Little Free Library – Proposal to install community access item in front of 
the Cabazon Water District office – Victoria Burke 

 Ms. Burke stated that she would like to have a “Little Free Library” installed in front of the Cabazon Water
District office and believed she needed permission from the Board. Mickey Valdivia from the County of
Riverside was in the public and said that he could assist with the matter.

*No action was taken.

6. Discussion/Action: Unit #004: 2016 Ford Fiesta use for meter reading 

 Director Davis asked why the Ford Fiesta was not being used for meter reading and said that that was the
main reason for the purchase of the vehicle. GM Pollack said that it is being used, and that since there are 3
field workers, the trucks are also being used. He also said that the car is not suitable for rough terrain, so
the trucks need to be used to reach several properties.

 Director Wargo stated that the Board could not go into the details of day-to-day operations, but they wanted
to bring this matter up since the main purpose of the purchase of the car was to be used for meter reading.

*No action was taken.

OLD BUSINESS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to 
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting.  The Board of Directors is prohibited 
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period.  To comment on 
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the 
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 
53232.3(d)) 

 Mickey Valdivia introduced himself, Robert Ybarra, and Ron Duncan as Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass
Water Agency. He said that the SGPWA is expanding their footprint to small agencies that need assistance.
He shared that the backbone pipeline is in the Engineering phase, and that they are currently looking into
funding.

 Mr. Valdivia also works with the County of Riverside and said that the ARPA agreement was ratified at the
County’s Board meeting earlier that day.

 Director Duncan attended the meeting virtually, and echoed what Director Valdivia said. He also welcomed
Michael Pollack as General Manager.

GENERAL MANAGER/BOARD COMMENTS 

1. Future Agenda Items

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

 Suggested agenda items from the Public.

 Suggested agenda items from Management.

 Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

Page 16 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

October 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

5 

Page 5 of 5 

2. Management Comments

Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

 Director Morris said that since there hasn’t been many updates during the CAC meetings, it might be a good
idea to reduce the amount of those meetings that Directors attend to reduce the spending of District funds.

 The Board thanked GM Pollack again for all of his hard work.

MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a. Collaborative Agencies Meeting at Beaumont Unified School District – Nov. 2, 2022, 5:00 pm
b. Finance & Audit Workshop – Tuesday, Nov. 15, 2022, 5:00 pm
c. Regular Board Meeting – Tuesday, Nov. 15, 2022, 6:00 pm
d. San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Meeting – Monday, Jan. 23, 2023, 5:00 pm
e. Community Water Systems Alliance Meeting – TBD – 2023
f. Community Action Committee Meeting – TBD – 2023
g. Personnel Committee – TBD

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn at 7:07 PM made by Director Morris and 2nd by Director Tincher 

Director Brock - Aye 
Director Tincher - Aye 
Director Morris - Aye 
Director Davis - Aye 
Director Wargo - Aye 

Meeting adjourned at 7:07 PM on Tuesday, October 18, 2022 

____________________________________ 
Sarah Wargo, Board Chair Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary 
Board of Directors Board of Directors 
Cabazon Water District  Cabazon Water District 

ADA Compliance Issues 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a 
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff 
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access. 

Page 17 of 63



Page 18 of 63



Page 19 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

New Business 

1. Discussion/Action Item:

[TAB 1] 

Award of Contract for Isolation Valve Improvement 

Project; Borden Excavating INC   

Attachments: 

1. Borden Excavating INC Bid

Page 20 of 63



Page 21 of 63



Page 22 of 63



Page 23 of 63



Page 24 of 63



Page 25 of 63



Page 26 of 63



Page 27 of 63



Page 28 of 63



Page 29 of 63



Page 30 of 63



Page 31 of 63



Page 32 of 63



Page 33 of 63



Page 34 of 63



Page 35 of 63



Page 36 of 63



Page 37 of 63



Page 38 of 63



Page 39 of 63



Page 40 of 63



Page 41 of 63



Page 42 of 63

eaguilar
Highlight



Page 43 of 63



Page 44 of 63



Page 45 of 63



Page 46 of 63



Page 47 of 63



Page 48 of 63



Page 49 of 63



Page 50 of 63



Page 51 of 63



Page 52 of 63



Page 53 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

New Business 

 

 

2. Discussion/Action Item: 

[TAB 2] 

 

Bonita Ave PRV Station Replacement Project   

 

 

 

 

Attachments:  

1. Proposed PRV Vault Location  

2. OldCastle Quote for 6’ x 12’ Utility Vault 

3. Krieger & Stewart Engineering Services Quote 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54 of 63



Bonita Avenue PRV Station Replacement Project 

 

 
Page 55 of 63

mpollack
Rectangle

mpollack
Text Box
Proposed PRV Vault Location

mpollack
Line

mpollack
Rectangle

mpollack
Text Box
Proposed PRV Vault Location

mpollack
Line



Cabazon Water District Bonita PRV Vault 

Old Castle Precast $16,500.00 (6 week lead time) (909) 428 3700 

 

 

Page 56 of 63



 

Page 57 of 63



 

 

Page 58 of 63



K R I E G E R  &  S T E W A R T ,  I N C O R P O R A T E D  
Mailing Address:  3890 Orange Street #1509, Riverside, CA  92502 

Office Address: 3602 University Avenue, Riverside, CA  92501 
Tel: (951) 684-6900  •  Fax: (951) 684-6986  •  www.kriegerandstewart.com 

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT 
BONITA AVE PRV STATION REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

SCOPE OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Krieger & Stewart will provide the following engineering services for the design and construction of a new PRV 
station to replace the existing PRV station on Bonita Avenue: 

• Research of easement records to confirm District's right to construct the proposed PRV station.

If the easement rights are confirmed, commence remaining tasks.

• Design surveying, including both office support and field surveying services, for the following items:

- Horizontal and vertical survey control in Bonita Avenue
- Utility appurtenance locations
- Pothole location surveying
- Right-of-way/easement limit identification

Note: Our scope does not include USA marking or potholing, which we anticipate will be performed by 
District forces.  We anticipate approximately two (2) design potholes will be needed. 

• Preparation of two (2) plan sheet showing the proposed location and configuration of the new station.  We
anticipate the plan sheets will include civil and structural/mechanical plan views, and structural/mechanical
cross-section views.

• Assisting the District in the acquisition of necessary encroachment permits.

• Preparation of record drawings following construction.

Construction phase support services (including attending a pre-bid meeting, conducting a bid opening, preparation 
of award/contract documents, construction management and administration, construction inspection, construction 
staking/control survey, etc.) are not included in our scope, as we understand the District will be self-performing the 
work. 

TRR/blt 
683-11P21-PRO-R1
(11/8/2022)

Page 59 of 63



HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $

1. RECORDS SEARCH 1 255 2 424 4 820 8 968 2,467

2. DESIGN SURVEY 4 848 4 652 6 1,368 2,868

3. CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 1 255 8 1,696 24 4,920 16 2,608 4 484 9,963

4. COUNTY PERMIT ASSISTANCE 2 424 2 410 2 326 2 326 1,486

5. RECORD DRAWINGS 2 424 4 820 8 1,304 2,548

SUBTOTAL: 2 510 18 3,816 34 6,970 30 4,890 14 1,778 6 1,368 19,332

REIMBURSABLES (2% OF K&S FEES ONLY): 387

ENGINEERING SERVICES TOTAL (ROUNDED): 19,700
HOURLY RATES PER K&S 2022 FEE SCHEDULE:
(1) PRINCIPAL ENGINEER @ $255 /Hr
(2) SENIOR ENGINEER I @ $212 /Hr
(3) SENIOR SURVEYOR I @ $212 /Hr
(4) ASSOCIATE ENGINEER III @ $205 /Hr
(5) OPERATOR III @ $163 /Hr
(6) STAFF TECHNICIAN III @ $121 /Hr
(7) 1-MAN SURVEY CREW @ $228 /Hr

TOTAL

PROJECT 
MANAGER (2)

/ SURVEYOR (3)
PRINCIPAL 

IN CHARGE (1)
PROJECT 

ENGINEER (4)

ESTIMATE IS BASED ON PROVIDING TWO CONSTRUCTION DRAWING SHEETS 
(PLAN AND CROSS-SECTIONS).  USA MARKING AND POTHOLING WILL BE 
PROVIDED BY CWD FORCES.

TASK / COMPONENT

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT

ESTIMATED FEES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

BONITA AVENUE PRV STATION REPLACEMENT PROJECT

CADD 
SERVICES (5)

SURVEYING 
SERVICES (7)

SUPPORT 
SERVICES (6)

KRIEGER & STEWART

$

683-11P21-PRO-R1.xlsx (11/8/2022) Page 60 of 63



Cabazon Water District 

November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 

Business (951) 849-4442  FAX (951) 849-2519 

New Business 

3. Discussion/Action Item:

[TAB 3] 

Proposal by Krieger & Stewart regarding the ARPA-

funded Broadway/Main Cluster Valve Project 

Attachments: 

1. Krieger & Stewart Engineering Services Proposal

Page 61 of 63



K R I E G E R  &  S T E W A R T ,  I N C O R P O R A T E D  
Mailing Address:  3890 Orange Street #1509, Riverside, CA  92502 

Office Address: 3602 University Avenue, Riverside, CA  92501 

Tel: (951) 684-6900  •  Fax: (951) 684-6986  •  www.kriegerandstewart.com

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT 

BROADWAY AND MAIN STREET CLUSTER VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

SCOPE OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Krieger & Stewart will provide the following engineering services for the design and construction of a replacement 

cluster valve assembly at the intersection of Broadway and Main Street: 

• Preparation of Contract Documents, including specifications and an exhibit showing the proposed cluster valve

assembly replacement.  We anticipate the exhibit will be plan view, with a detail of the assembly (similar to the

drawings for the recent Isolation Valve project).

o Note:  Our scope does not include USA marking and potholing, which we do not anticipate is required

on this project.

• Bidding phase support services, including coordinating legal advertising, distributing and tracking Contract

Document distribution to prospective bidders, answering questions about or providing clarifications regarding

the Contract Documents, conducting a pre-bid meeting, and preparing and distributing addenda, if necessary,

during the bid period; reviewing the bids received and preparing a Recommendation of Award Memorandum

summarizing the results of bids received following the bid opening, and coordinating and conforming executed

Contract Documents between the Contractor and the District.

• Construction phase support services, including conducting preconstruction and progress meetings, contract

administration and engineering, ten (10) material and shop drawing submittal reviews, two (2) partial payment

request reviews, and five (5) RFI and clarification reviews.

o Note: Our scope does not include construction inspection or construction staking/control survey.

• Preparation of project closeout documents following construction.

• Preparation of record drawings following construction.

Note that our proposal amount is based on the budgetary numbers determined during preparation of the ARPA 

funding agreement with the County of Riverside. 

TRR/blt 

683-11P22-PRO

(11/9/2022)

Page 62 of 63



HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $ HOURS $

1. CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS & SPECIFICATIONS 1 255 2 424 16 3,280 8 1,304 12 1,452 6,715

2. BIDDING PHASE SUPPORT 1 255 2 424 2 410 12 1,956 3,045

3. CONSTRUCTION PHASE SUPPORT 1 255 8 1,696 20 4,100 12 1,956 8,007

4. PROJECT CLOSEOUT & RECORD DRAWINGS 2 424 2 410 2 326 4 652 1,812

SUBTOTAL: 3 765 14 2,968 40 8,200 10 1,630 40 6,016 19,579

REIMBURSABLES (2% OF K&S FEES ONLY): 392

ENGINEERING SERVICES TOTAL (ROUNDED): 20,000
HOURLY RATES PER K&S 2022 FEE SCHEDULE:
(1) PRINCIPAL ENGINEER @ $255 /Hr
(2) SENIOR ENGINEER I @ $212 /Hr
(3) SENIOR SURVEYOR I @ $212 /Hr
(4) ASSOCIATE ENGINEER III @ $205 /Hr
(5) OPERATOR III @ $163 /Hr
(6) STAFF TECHNICIAN III @ $121 /Hr

TASK / COMPONENT

CABAZON WATER DISTRICT

BROADWAY AND MAIN STREET CLUSTER VALVE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

ESTIMATED FEES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

CADD 

SERVICES (5)

SUPPORT 

SERVICES (6)

KRIEGER & STEWART

$

TOTAL

PROJECT MANAGER (2)

/ SURVEYOR (3)

PRINCIPAL 

IN CHARGE (1)

PROJECT 

ENGINEER (4)

683-11P22-PRO.xlsx (11/9/2022) Page 63 of 63


	FAC Agenda
	Financials

	Regular Agenda
	Consent Calendar
	TAB 1- Isolation Valve Bid
	TAB 2- Bonita PRV Station
	TAB 3- Broadway/Main Cluster Valve



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




